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Inquiries are numbered in the order they were received.  Numbers missing from the sequence below do not yet have a Government 
response or have appeared in a previous amendment.  No inquiry number will be repeated regardless of the amendment it appears in. 
 

    REFERENCE       

Bid 
Inquiry 

Page Section Para QUESTION GOVERNMENT 
RESPONSE 

7   Part 3, 
Ch 4 

4 Three documents are provided for the project 
program and personnel: the BFR Worksheet, the 
4_SpaceTabMaster and the Staffing and 
Equipment Matrix. Department codes, staff and 
equipment requirements do not correlate 
between the three documents: 
- Codes 222,227,228,244A and 257 missing 
from BFR 
- Codes 244A, 253, 265 missing from Space Tab 
- Conference spaces - BFR 15, Space Tab 7, 
Staff-Eq 7 
- many spaces and equipment/storage areas 
indicated in the BFR, are not indicated on the 
Staff-Eq Matrix 
- total personnel - BFR 243, Space Tab 298, 
Staff-Eq 298 but Code totals do not match 
PLEASE ADVISE ON WHICH DOCUMENT 
TO USE OR PROVIDE UPDATED 
PROGRAMMING TABULATION 

See Continuation 
Sheet for 
Amendment 02 

8   Part 3, 
Ch 4 

5 5.0 Rm Rqmts - Break Room/Vending - Please 
indicate the minimum L.F. of wall and base 
cabinets and countertop. 

See Continuation 
Sheet for 
Amendment 02 

9   Part 3, 
Ch 4 

5 5.0 Rm Rqmts - Mechanical Room at Commons 
- Confirm or clarify that this space requires 'no 
wax and no polish homogeneous tile' and 
acoustical ceiling tile. 

See Continuation 
Sheet for 
Amendment 02 

10   Part 3, 
Ch 4 

5 5.0 Rm Rqmts - Restrooms - Clarify which wall 
tile requirement is correct: 48"h wainscot on wet 
walls or floor to ceiling porcelain tile with 2 
accents. 

See Continuation 
Sheet for 
Amendment 02 

13   Part 3, 
Ch 6 

ESR C10 ESR C103005 LOCKERS - Clarify single tier 
and/or double tier requirement. 

See Amendment 
02 and RFI 77. 

15   Part 6, Att#3 Please clarify the scope of work or requirements 
associated with the Existing Furnishings List 
dated 4/15/15. 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

16 2 Part 3 - Chapter 6 
/ ESR D20 

D2020 Please provide the test flow data as noted in this 
section but left blank. 

See Cont Sheet 
Amendment 02 

17 2 Part 3 - Chapter 6 
/ ESR D20 

D202001 This section identifies exterior domestic water 
piping above 2.5" and interior and exterior 
piping below 3". What are acceptable materials 
for interior domestic water piping above 3"? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

18 3 Part 3 - Chapter 6 
/ ESR D20 

D2030 Sanitary Waste and Vent piping are identified as 
CI, hub, no-hum or hub and spigot only. May 
DWV piping under slab and in areas not exposed 
to plenums be DWV rated PVC? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 and RFI 17 
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19 2 Part 3 - Chapter 6 
/ ESR D20 

D202003 The RFP currently calls for electric domestic 
water heating.  While initially cost effective this 
system is not of optimum energy efficiency.  
Would it be preferred for the building to be 
provided with a domestic steam to domestic hot 
water heat exchanger similar to the RFP 
requirements or heating hot water? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

20 2 Part 3 - Chapter 6 
/ ESR D30 

  This paragraph indicates that separate zones are 
required for "each; general office space, 
partitioned office"…etc.  Please confirm the 
intent of the RFP is that every individual office 
will require dedicated zone control.  Or should 
the language be amended to more common 
definitions such as  " general office space zones 
shall be limited to a maximum of 4 individual 
spaces of similar exposure and cooling loading 
with a maximum square footage per zone of 
2,500 SF." 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

21 3 Part 3 - Chapter 6 
/ ESR D30 

D303001 This section indicates a chilled water system that 
will be operational to 20 degrees F.  At these 
temperatures the chilled water piping may be 
subject to freezing.  What means of freeze 
protection is desired for the chilled water 
system? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

22 2 Part 3 - Chapter 6 
/ ESR D30 

D30 In the this section it references an evaluation of 
at least three HVAC systems to be provided 
during the projects design phase. The assessment 
is for a central AHU, DX and "other" system.  
The RFP goes on to also identify Terminal Fan 
Coils as an acceptable system option.  Is the 
contractor able to evaluate multiple systems for 
"life cycle cost, maintenance cost, sustainability, 
energy efficiency and space required" and 
submit on the system they feel best meets those 
requirements?   

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

23 3 Part 3 - Chapter 6 
/ ESR D30 

D303002 Shall all DX systems be vertical floor-mounted 
or can they be wall-mounted? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

24 4 Part 3 - Chapter 6 
/ ESR D30 

D304008 Is this intention to provide 95% filters for this 
facility? Is this necessary for office, conference, 
etc. spaces? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

25 5 Part 3 - Chapter 6 
/ ESR D30 

D305003 Shall all FCU's be vertical floor-mounted or can 
they be a different configuration (horizontal 
concealed, etc.)? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

26   Part 3 - Chapter 6 
/ ESR D30 

D309091 This section appears to have been copied from a 
facilities design guide and in multiple locations it 
contradicts other parts of section D30…for 
example D303001 says chillers can be 
reciprocating, rotary screw or scroll with staging 
down to 20% where as on page 14 it indicates 
that chillers depending on size must be screw or 
scroll depending on the size and staging to 25%.  
Which sections of D30 should take precedence? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 
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27   Part 3 - Chapter 6 
/ ESR D30 

D309091 This section on page 11 indicates that Duct Air 
Leakage Testing (DALT) is required on ALL 
ductwork.  Duct leak testing on negative 
pressure systems such as general toilet exhaust 
etc. adds significant costs to a project please 
confirm this is desired for all ductwork. 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

29 10 Part 4 - Section 
D50 D509007 

PV A photovoltaic system is specified in this 
section.  How big of a PV system is required of 
this solicitation for this project? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

30 12 Part 4 - Section 
D50 D509090 

400 Hertz Where are 400 Hz connections required?  What 
size of a 400 Hz Motor Generator is required? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

33   Part 3, 
Ch 1    Ch 4  

         21       
4.3 

Chapter 1 Item 21 and Chapter 4 Section 4.3 
indicate approximately 40 existing windows will 
be removed, restored, and re-installed along with 
new back-up ATFP blast picture windows.             
Scope of Work, Page 1 Exterior Renovation and 
the 2014 Update to 2008 Historic Window 
Survey Page 2 Exterior Renovation indicate due 
to general again conditions windows be replaced 
with  fixed double hung, double pane windows 
matching existing historical profiles and that 1-4 
existing windows be removed, restored, and 
installed at interior historic displays.                       
Please clarify the scope of work regarding 
exterior windows. 
 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

34   PRICE 
PROPOSAL 
FORM 

  ARE THE QUANTITIES GIVEN FOR THE 
UNIT PRICES MEANT TO BE 100% OF THE 
SCOPE OF THE WORK? MEANING NO 
DOLLARS SHOULD BE INCLUDED IN 
BASE BID 0001A FOR THE SCOPE OF 
WORK  CALLED OUT IN THE UNIT PRICE 
BID ITEMS. 

That is correct.   

35   PRICE 
PROPOSAL 
FORM-UNIT 
PRICE 0001B&C 
HISTORIC 
WINDOW 
RESTORATION 
& P3-C1-P4 

  THE QUANTITY CALLED OUT ON P3-C1-
P4 IS 40EA IS THE SAME QUANTITY AS 
THE SUM OF UNIT PRICE ITEMS 0001B & 
0001C. PLEASE CONFIRM THAT ALL THE 
HISTORIC WINDOW RESTORATION IS TO 
BE DONE ON UNIT PRICE AND THAT NO 
DOLLARS ARE TO BE INCLUDED IN BASE 
BID 0001A FOR THIS WORK. 

Disregard the 
number of 
windows called 
out in Part 3, 
Chapter 1, 
Paragraph 21.  A 
revised Price 
Proposal Form 
will capture 100% 
of the windows. 

37   PRICE 
PROPOSAL 
FORM-UNIT 
PRICE 0001P 40 
YARD 
DUMPSTER 

  WHAT DOES IT MEAN "BEYOND 
RECYCLING"? IS THIS BID ITEM MEANT 
TO INCLUDE ALL DUMPSTERS FOR THE 
COMPLETE DEMOLTION SCOPE? 
MEANING NO DOLLARS ARE TO BE 
INCLUDED FOR DUMPSTERS FOR 
DEMOLITION IN BASE BID ITEM 0001A 

It means anything 
that cannot be 
recycled.  It 
inlcudes all 
dumpsters for non 
recyclable 
construction 
waste. 
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38   P3-C1-P3 & 
PRICE 
PROPOSAL 
FORM-UNIT 
PRICE 0001E 
MASONRY 
REPOINTING 

   A QUANTITY FOR EXT MASONRY 
REPAIR & REPOINTING OF 7,000SF AND A 
QUANTITY FOR INT MASONRY REPAIR & 
REPOINTING OF 7,000SF HAS BEEN 
CALLED OUT. ARE THESE QUANTITIES 
TO BE INCLUDED IN THE BASE BID 0001A 
IN ADDITION TO THE UNIT PRICE FOR 
0001E MORTAR REPOINTING? 

The Unit Price 
captures all 
anticipated 
repointing.  See 
Continuation sheet 
for Amendment 02 

39   P3-C6/ESR B20 
& PRICE 
PROPOSAL 
FORM-UNIT 
PRICE 0001E 
MASONRY 
REPOINTING 

  THE SPEC STATES "ANTICIPATE 
REMOVAL OF 33,000 LINEAL FEET OF THE 
EXISTING MORTAR JOINTS BY HAND FOR 
REPOINTING." IS THIS QUANTITY TO BE 
INCLUDED IN THE BASE BID 0001A IN 
ADDITION TO THE UNIT PRICE FOR 0001E 
MORTAR REPOINTING? 

The Unit Price 
captures all 
anticipated 
repointing.  See 
Continuation sheet 
for Amendment 02 

40   P3-C6/ESRA10   THE SPEC STATES:"THE EXISTING SLAB 
SUBGRADE IN THE NORTH END OF THE 
BUILDING IS IDENTIFIED ON THE 
ATTACHED REFERENCE DRAWINGS AS 
CINDER FILL AND IS OBSERVED TO 
CONTAIN VOIDS. THIS CONDITION IS 
ASSUMED TO HAVE CAUSED SLAB 
SETTLEMENT." WE RESPECTFULLY 
REQUEST A CY ALLOWANCE OR A UNIT 
PRICE FOR REMOVAL OF CINDER FILL. 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

42   P3-C1-P3 & 
D509002 

  D509002 STATES "PROVIDE AN 
EMERGENCY GENERATOR" WHILE P3-C1-
P3 STATES"CONNECT SPECIFIED 
EQUIPMENT TO EXISTING EMERGENCY 
GENERATOR". WHICH IS CORRECT 
PROVIDE A NEW EMERGENCY 
GENERATOR, CONNECT TO EXISTING OR 
DO WE NEED TO DO BOTH? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 (similar to RFI 
30) 

43   01 33 29.05 20   IS THIS TO BE A LEED CERTIFIED 
BUILDING? IF SO WHAT LEVEL IS 
DESIRED?  

We are not 
attaining LEED 
Ccertification, 
only following the 
"guiding 
principals" 

45   P3-C1-P1&2   WILL THE GOVERNMENT OR THE 
CONTRACTOR REMOVE THE EXISTING 
FURNISHINGS ONCE THE BUILDING IS 
VACATED? IF IT IS THE CONTRACTOR 
THEN WE RESPECTFULLY REQUEST A 
LIST OF FURNISHINGS ON WHICH TO 
BASE OUR PRICING. 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

48   REFERENCE 
SPACE 
TABULATION 

  THE SPEC STATES "THE DESIGN BUILD 
CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE ACTUAL 
AREA IN BOTH SQUARE FEET AND 
SQUARE METERS IN PROPOSALS." WE 
HAVE NOT SEEN A REQUIREMENT IN 
THE TECHNICAL PROPOSAL 
REQUESTING THIS. CONFIRM THAT  THIS 
IS REQUIRED AS A BID SUBMISSION. 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 
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49 Part 3 Chapter 1 Page 5 Building 30 Trailer Complex:  Pre-solicitation 
documentation requires 25,000SF of temporary 
modular administrative office space; however, 
the RFP Part 3 Chapter 1 Page 5 calls for the 
temporary space to accommodate 250 staff 
members plus their support spaces.  Based on the 
space tab master document, there are 253 staff 
members with a total net SF requirement of 
25,530 SF not including support spaces.  Please 
identify which requirement is correct, and if the 
maximum SF is 25,000, please identify the 
propoer quantity of each code's private office, 
administrative spaces and cubicles that are 
required in the trailer complex. 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

50 Part 3 Chapter 1 Page 5 Building 30 temporary offices/trailer:  Part 3 
Chapter 1 Page 5 Last Paragraph refers us to Part 
6 Attachments for a Trailer Complex document.  
This document is not included in the RFP.  
Please provide. 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

52 Part 3 Chapter 1 Page 1 Building 30 Temporary Offices/Trailer:  Part 3 
Chapter 1, 1.0 Project Description, item#4 notes 
that the staff and equipment matrix should be 
used as the Temporary offices/trailer complex 
programming guide.  Part 3, Chapter 2, 2.9 
Temporary Offices, refers us to the Section 4, 
Building Requirements and Space Tab Master 
for planning guiedelins.  These documents offer 
conflicting information and do not contain all of 
the same spaces.  Please identify which 
document takes precedence for 
planning/programming the Temporary 
Offices/Trailer 

See response to 
RFI 7 

53 Part 3 Chapter 5 Space Tab 
Master 

Building 30:  Part 3, Space Tab Master 
document indicates 120 SF for a GS-13 Office; 
however, the UFC 2-000-05N, 610 
Administrative Buildings Indicates 150 SF.  
Please confirm which size is required for this 
staff member. 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

54 Part 3 Chapter 5 Space Tab 
Master 

Building 30:  Part 3, Space Tab Master 
document indicates 500 SF for Qty. 1 
Conference Room with 16 seats and 416 SF for 
Qty.  2 Conference Room with 26 seats (12 seats 
with 14 additional seats).  Please clarify whether 
this is supposed to be Qty. 2416 SF conference 
rooms each with 6 seats + 7 additional, OR if the 
overall SF should increase, OR if the conference 
room with 16 seats should be smaller, ETC. 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 
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55 Part 3 Chapter 6 ESR C10, 
C101001 

Building 30:  Part 3, Chapter 6, ESR C10, 
C101001 Fixed Partitiions references 
demountable partitions are specifically required 
by the "Room Requirment" pages.  Part 3 Room 
Requirements for Flexi-Space requires an Open 
Office environment with systems furniture and 
occasional divisional wall, yet it does not call for 
glass/demountable partitions.  Part 6 Concept 
Floor Plan indicates Glass Partitioins for the 
Private Offices.  Please confirm whether 
Glass/Demountable Partitions are required, and 
if so, whether these partitions will be provided as 
part of the construction contract or as part of the 
separately funded Furniture, Fixtures & 
Equipment (FF&E) package 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

56 Part 3 Chapter 5 Room 
Rqmnts, 
Facility 
Entry 

Building 30:  Part 3, Chapter 5, Room 
Requirements, Facility Entry, C103004 calls for 
both Walk-Off Mats and Recessed Entrance 
Mats.  Please confirm the Recessed Entrance 
Mats are only at the entrance door/foyer. 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

57 Part 3 Chapter 5 Room 
Rqmnts, 
Restrooms 

Building 30:  Part3, Chapter 5, Room 
Requirements, Restrooms, calls for porcelain tile 
to be both 48"h and full height.  Part3, Chapter 
6, ESR C30 calls for wall tile to extend from the 
floor to the ceiling.  Please confirm which 
requirement is correct. 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02.  Also see RFI 
10. 

67 1 Part 5 D4010 Please provide the type of basewide fire 
reporting system and a manufacturer if 
applicable, e.g., Gamewell telegraphic, Monaco 
radio, etc.  Is there an existing transmitter that is 
to be reused? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

68 1 Part 5 D4010 Is there an existing basewide mass notification 
system that this building is to be interconnected 
with, or will the MNS system in this building be 
standalone? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

71   Part 4 and 5 D5090007
, D50 

Photovoltaic systems are being indicated to be 
provided on the roof of building 30. Please 
provide output KVA requirements of the 
photovoltaic energy required for pricing 
purposes 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02, Also RFI 29 & 
121. 

72   Part 5 D509090 Will we need provide 400Hz infrastructure 
required? If so, please provide additional 
information? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

73 3 Part 3 14 d. Are there existing panels that are required to be 
reused?  

See Cont Sheet 
Amendment 02 

74 3 Part 3 14 c. Will a PDS system be required? See Cont Sheet 
Amendment 02 

75   Part 4 G401001 An electrical substation for building 30 is 
required per the RFP. Please provide more 
information in regards to preferred site location 
of this equipment and the location of the primary 
feeders. 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 
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76   Part 5 D30 We presume Evaluation Factor 3 in Part 1 Epact 
analyis is required as part of the RFP porposal, 
and 10% LCCA for systems comparison is part 
of the design post award. Please confirm.  

Yes, the EPAct 
analysis is part of 
the proposal and 
the 10% LCCA is 
part of the design 
post award. 

77   Part 1; Part 5 D30 UFC 1-200-02 requires achievement of 30% 
energy savings beyond the ASHRAE 90.1-2010 
baseline for all project design starts after July 9, 
2014.  RFP Evaluation Factor 3 requires 
achievement of 30% energy savings beyond the 
ASHRAE 90.1-2007 baseline.  RFP Part 5 D30 
requires compliance with ASHRAE 90.1-2013.  
Please clarify which ASHRAE 90.1 versions are 
to be utilized for the project.  It is our 
understanding that Evaluation Factor 3 should be 
based on 30% energy savings beyond 90.1-2007 
and that the proposed solution shall also comply 
with the minimum requirements of ASHRAE 
90.1-2013.  

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

78     D20 Need for safety shower/eyewash per ANSI 
Z358.1 

See Cont Sheet 
Amendment 02 

79     D20 Need hydrant flow data of static and residual 
water pressure for sizing  utility or if a booster 
pump will be required. 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 and RFI 66. 

80 4 Part 3, Chapter 2  2.5.2 Please confirm that vacating of the builidng 
occupants, furniture & equipment prior to start 
of  construction will be handled by the Gov't and 
is not within the Contractor's scope of work. 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

81 4 Part 3, Chapter 2  2.8 Please confirm that furniture for the temporary 
offices will be provided by the Gov't and is not 
included in the design and set-up of the 
Contractor's scope. 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

82   Part 6 3 Please confirm that tagging, storage, and re-
installation of existing furniture items for re-use 
are by the gov't and not part of the Contractor's 
scope of work. 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

83 1 Part 3 3.1 To bring the finished floor elevation above the 
100 year flood plain it requires the raising of 
floor to elevation 102.80.  In Chapter 6, Part 3, 
Paragraph G103001 GRADING, it states to 
provide a new finished floor elevation of 104.10.  
Which finished floor elevation should be used? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

84 10 Part 3, Ch 1   The Temporary Offices will require a sanitary 
sewer connection.  Will the collection system 
require an analysis for capacity? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

85 2 Part 3, Ch 6 G3020 Sanitary Sewer; states to notify the utility 
provider of the additional wastewater flow.  It 
also states to evaluate the capacity of the existing 
collection system.  Is the evaluation of the 
sanitary sewer pump station required or will the 
utility provider verify pump station capacity with 
the wasterwater flows provided. 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

86 10 Part 3, Ch 1   ATFP: Is there a perferred type/style/model of 
security barrier at the river to prevent unoffical 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
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boat traffic near the facilities? 02 

87       The condensate lines for the proposed HVAC 
system(s).  Should they discharge into the Storm 
Drain or Sanirary Sewer system?   

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

88       The existing bicycle racks are in poor condition 
and look unsightly.  Should we anticipate the 
installation of new bicycle racks?  

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

89       Drainage downspouts.  Shall the downspouts 
continue to empty on to grade or will an 
undergound collecton system be required? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

90       Will new downspout splash blocks be required? See Cont Sheet 
Amendment 02 

91       Will the Contractor be required to tag, store and 
re-install the existing furniture items for re-use? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 and RFI 82. 

92   Part 5 - Ch 6 - 
ESR B20 - Page 3 

  What performance category is required for 
exterior doors?  RFP statement is not clear. 

See Cont Sheet 
Amendment 02 

93   Part 3 - Ch 1- 
Page 3 

  Has the cause of the movement in the end walls 
been determined?  Anchorage into the roof alone 
may solve the symptom, but may not mitigate 
the cause.  There is no guarantee that attachment 
will prevent further movement as required by the 
RFP.  Confirm the intended scope for this item is 
only to provide positive connection between the 
end walls and the roof structure. 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

95       Are any spaces within the structure considered 
“confined spaces” per OSHA that will be 
required to perform the structural condition 
assessment?  Additional costs and qualifications 
for labor will be incurred if confined spaces are 
present. 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

96       Is material testing required to determine material 
characteristics for use in structural 
assessment/analysis or can reasonable 
assumptions be used if justified? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

97       Can more information be provided on the 
location, size, weight, and quantity of secure 
safes required in the facility? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

98   Part 5 ESR D40   The RFP for Building M-32 includes a 
NAVFAC MIDLANT regional guide 
specification for the fire alarm/mass notificaiton 
system.  That specification is not included or 
referenced in this RFP.  Is this regional version 
applicable to the Building 30 project? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

99  PART 3 1.0 
PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

  THE SPEC STATES THAT THE WORK WILL 
INCLUDE "FURNISHING" FOR THE 
MODULAR OFFICE TRAILER SCOPE OF 
WORK. CONFIRM WHETHER THESE 
"FURNISHINGS" FOR THE MODULAR 
OFFICES ARE PART OF CONSTRUCTION 
CONTRACT OR PART OF THE FF&E. 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 
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100   P3-C1-P4 & PT 3-
C6/ESR/A10  

  P3-C1-P4 CALLS FOR 1-20' SOIL BORING 
AT EAST BRK ADDTN FLOOR SLAB 
WHILE PT3-C6/ESR A10 CALLS FOR AS A 
MINIMUM...6 BORINGS TO A DEPTH OF 
20FT FOR GENERAL ARE BENEATH SLAB 
ON GRADE. WHAT NUMBER OF BORINGS 
ARE REQUIRED-ONE OR SIX? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

101   N/A   WE RESPECTFULLY REQUEST A 
SPECIFICATION CALLING OUT THE 
TRAILER COMPLEX REQUIREMENTS 

See RFP 

102   PART 3 1.0 
PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

  WHAT ENTITIY IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE 
TEMPORARY MONTHLY ELECTRICAL 
FOR RUNNING THE TRAILERS DURING 
THE CONSTRUCTION PERIOD? IS IT THE 
GOVERNMENT OR THE GENERAL 
CONTRACTOR? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

103   BUILDING AND 
WINDOW 
RENOVATION 
ADDENDUM 
SEPT 2008 

  THE ADDENDUM MENTIONS ASBESTOS 
WINDOW CAULK. WE HAVE NOT SEEN 
THIS ITEM ON THE BID FORM. WE 
RESPECTFULLY REQUEST A BID 
QUANTITY ALONG WITH A UNIT PRICE  
FOR THIS ITEM. 

See revised Price 
Proposal Form in 
Amendment 02 

104   UFC DOD 
MINIMUM 
STANDARDS 
FOR 
BUILDINGS 

  1-9.6 TRANSITIONAL STRUCTURES AND 
SPACES STATE "THESE BUILDINGS AND 
STRUCTURES INCLUDING BUILDINGS 
AND STRUCTURES LEASED TO PROVIDE 
TRANSITIONAL SPACES, ARE EXEMPT 
FROM ALL PROVISIONS OF THESE 
STANDARDS DURING THE LIFE OF THE 
CONSTRUCTION OR RENOVATION 
CONTRACT FOR WHICH THE 
TRANSITIONAL BUILDINGS AND 
STRUCTURES ARE BEING PROVIDED, 
BUT NO LONGER THAN 5 YEARS." 1-9.7 
STATES "TEMPORARY AND 
RELOCATABLE BUILDINGS THAT ARE 
INTENDED FOR USE FOR LESS THAN 5 
YEARS EXCEPT THOSE CONSTRUCTED IN 
EXPEDITIONARY ENVIRONMENTS ARE 
EXEMPT FROM ALL PROVISIONS OF 
THESE STANDARDS." BASED ON THE 
PREVIOUS PLEASE CONFIRM THAT ATFP 
IS NOT TO BE CONSIDERED FOR THE 
TRAILERS. 

Temporary 
Modular Units are 
Exempt from 
ATFP 
requirements if not 
used for more than 
5 years. 

105 Part 3 Chapter 6 ESR C10, 
C103006 

Section C103006 Shelving includes brackets and 
is not clear regarding required weight capacty 
per shelf.  Please advise. 

See RFP 

107 Part 3 Chapter 6 ESR C10, 
C103090 

Section C103090 requests above ceiling 
mounted motorized projection screens, above 
ceiling mounted projectors and pull down 
manula projection screens in lieu of motorized 
projection screens.  Please clarify which product 
will be required as part of the construction 
contract. 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 
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108 Part 3 Chapter 6 ESR C30 Section C3020 Floor Finishes, (a) Carpet 
Requirements requests an attached cushion.  
Please confirm whether an attached cushion is 
required or if this requirement is actually for an 
attached backing, as with carpet tile products.  
(e) Poured Epoxy Terrazzo Floor System 
requests zinc divider strips.  Please confirm 
whether this project will follow the current 
standard for aluminum strips or are zinc strips 
required. 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

109 Part 3 Chapter 6 ESR E20 Section E20 Furnishings requests State Sales 
Tax to be included with the AV Equipment 
Package.  Typically State Sales Tax is not 
permitted for Government procurement items.  
Please confirm.  Section E2020 Movable 
Furnishings states that the required quantity of 
BVDs to be performed will be determined by the 
NAVFAC Interior Designer during design 
phase.   Please identify the quantity of BVD 
packages that should be used in determining a 
Base Bid Design Fee for this project. 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

110 11 Part 3 Ch. 1 RFP part 3 -chapter 1, page 11 – security – 
Describes construction methods for secure room 
( open storage area construction standards per 
SEVNAV M-5510.36) .  Part 3 – chap 2 – page 
3 – 2.3.14 Secured areas – defines the entire 
facility as a secure island.  Are there any special 
defined spaces within the facility that would 
require secure wall construction as per SECNAV 
requirements in addition, i.e. visitor areas within 
the building perimeter? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

111 n/a Part 3 n/a RFP Part 3 – 04 Space Tab Master – Attic 
access.  Is the intent to have full stair access to 
the attic or will a ladder and access hatch be 
acceptable? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

112 4 Part 3 Ch. 1 RFP Part 3 Chap 1, page 4 – Item 21.  Is it 
acceptable to provide back-up blast picture 
windows in conjunction with new “of same 
construction type”(non blast) windows for 
windows that are unable to be repaired? RFP 
states to replace with blast windows with period 
look(color profile etc..) but this will detract from 
historical aesthetic by inconsistent practices. 

See RFP 

113 19 Part 4 b201003 Part 4 B201003-1.1 -Insulation Systems -  Is 
spray foam insulation permitted for use on 
existing brick walls where concealed by new 
interior wall construction?  Spray foam is not 
listed in rfp specifications. 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

114 n/a n/a n/a Are any materials for thermal/ moisture 
stabilization permitted to be applied to the 
existing brick walls on the interior or is the brick 
to remain untuoched? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02, see also RFI 
113 

115 1 Part 3 Ch. 6 Part 3 Chap 6/ESRC10 – Page 1 – C101001 
Fixed partitions.  RFP lists both an STC of 36/42 
for rooms not specifically called out in “Room 
Requirements”. What is the preferred STC to 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 



N40085-15-R-0064 
0002 

Page 12 of 20 
 

 

use? 

116   Part 3 5.0 Room 
reqmts 

Flexi-space – Uniformat section C303001 – 
Acoustical Ceiling tiles and panels & Space 
characteristics Acoustics.  Specific requirements 
table lists Acoustical ceiling tile required and as 
close to existing ceiling as necessary.  Is it 
acceptable to omit the Acoustic ceiling tile in 
these spaces if existing “hard ceiling” is 
replaced?   

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

117 2 Part 3 - Chapter 6 2 No hydrant flow test was included in the RFP. 
Can one be provided? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

118 5 Part 3 - Chapter 1 5 Confirm that Kitchenette shall include nothing 
more than a microwave, refrigerator, and coffee 
maker. No cooking shall be done within the 
building.  

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

119 1 Part 3 - Ch. 6, 
ESR D30 

D30 Building 30.    ESR D30, page 1 states that the 
design shall comply with the ASHRAE 90.1-
2013.  This is at variance with both the Heating, 
Ventilating and Air Conditioning Systems UFC 
as well as the High Performance and Sustainable 
Building Design UFC.  UFC 3-410-01 Heating, 
Ventilating and Air Conditioning Systems 
references the 2012 International Mechanical 
Code which in turns references ASHRAE 90.1-
2007.  UFC 1-200-02 (2013), section 2-4 states 
to utilize ASHRAE 90.1-2007 for Navy projects.   
Please advise which version of ASHRAE 90.1 
the design is required to comply with.  The D-B 
team believes it to be the 2007 version. 

See Amendment 
02 and RFI 77. 

121 10 Part 4   D509007  Building 30 - Is a PV system required? See Addendum 02, 
see also RFI 29 & 
71. 

122   Part 4   G40 Building 30 - Section G40 appears to contain 
project specific information/requirements.  Is 
this information applicable to this project?  As a 
specific example G401001 indicates sizing for 
transformer, and switchgear, is this applicable? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

123   Part 4 G401001 
and Part 5 
G401002 

  Building 30 - Part 4 G401001 second sentence 
says to "Install 1500kVA 11.5kV to 480/277V 
unit substation".   Part 5 G401002 states to 
"Provide a padmounted transformer to feed the 
facility."  Please clarify as to which is required?  

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

124   Part 5 G401011   Building 30 - Please confirm all padmounted 
tranformer and switchgear (if required) is to be 
stainless steel?  And if so, confirm 100% of 
enclosure or base only. 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 
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126 1 01 32 16.05 20 1.2.1 Key Project Milestones.  In this section you have 
laid the project schedule out for us.  In this 
section you have defined the number of 
days/durations for individual activities and their 
sequence in the project schedule.  Are we bound 
to this schedule or are we bound to the overall 
project duration as stated in the RFP of 975 days 
with freedom to set our individual activity 
durations on contractor action items?  We 
understand that like any project we will need to 
show a well thought out schedule to the Navy 
and request review and approval for the logic in 
that schedule but just want to make sure if we 
are or are not bound to the logic and durations 
laid out in this section. 

The contractor will 
be bound by the 
975 days.  The 
schedule was 
provided to 
convey the 
notional schedule 
with the intent of 
identifying the 
different design 
scheudles/timeline
s  for the approval 
of the temporary 
trailer and the final 
building design.  It 
was also intended 
to communicate 
the amount of time 
the government 
will require for 
moving into the 
trailers and then 
back into the 
building.    

127 1 01 32 16.05 20 1.2.1 Key Project Milestones.  In this section you have 
"comence construction" bound by a predecessor 
"final building design submittal".  Are you 
saying that we will not be able to start 
construction until the overall final building 
design is submitted?  The specifications allow 
critical design submissions on divisions that are 
critical path and / or require long lead items.  
Are we allowed to start construction on 
diciplines that have final design completed via 
critical path submissions ahead of the overall 
building design package to meet critical path on 
the project schedule?  

The contolling 
factor for 
commencing 
construction is the 
moving out of the 
current tenents 
into the temporary 
trailers and the 
facility being 
turned over to the 
contractor.  The 
notional schedule 
has this milestone 
nearly alligning 
with the final 
building design 
submittal.  Once 
the facility is 
vacated and turned 
over to the 
contractor 
demolision 
activities may 
commence.   

130 5 Part 3 Chapter 1 1 Is there a height requirment for the floating Port 
Security Barrier 

No comment, 
requirements 
offered, height is 
secondary to its 
ability. 

131 5 Part 3 Chapter 1 1 How often will the Protective Barriers need to be 
moved to allow access to the slips? 

See Cont Sheet 
Amendment 02 
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132 5 Part 3 Chapter 1 1 What size vessel does the Protective Barrier 
need to be designed for and at what speed? 

See Cont Sheet 
Amendment 02 

133 4 Part 3 Chapter 1 1 Item 21 states to anticipate repair and restoration 
of 40 double hung windows, also stated in Part 3 
chapter 2 page 1 para 2.3.  Are these the only 
windows to be repaired or are all windows being 
repaired/replaced? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

135 12 Price Proposal 
Form 

  0001K, 0001L, 0001M & 0001N Asbestos 
abatement units is this for all the abatement work 
throughout the building or is there other 
abatement work that is to be included in the base 
proposal? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

136 13 Price Proposal 
Form 

  Unit cost 0001Q Price per Unit of Modular 
Office is this unit cost for additional temporary 
offices and we are to carry cost in the base 
proposal to house 250 staff members or is this 
the total cost for the Temporary Office work in 
Part 3 Chapter 1 Page 10 

This is the total 
cost for the 
Temporary Office 
work. 

137 all Attachment 4, 
Window Survey 

all Attachment 4: Window Survey 2008 has many 
contradicitons making it confusing to establish 
what is needed.  For instance figure 11 states 
that it is the South Elevation yet the windows are 
labeled with E.   Windows on first floor of the E 
elevation addition are labeled with window type 
C on figure 14 but type H on the individual 
winow sheets.  Window B30E2-22 is labled type 
E on figure 19 and type D on the individual 
window sheet. Window B30E1-6 and B30E1-11 
are both labeled as type I but are clearly 
different.  These are just some examples.  Please 
review and clarifiy all discreptancies.   

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

138 all Attachment 4, 
Window Survey 

all Can you please provide a dimension for Type H.  
They all seem to be the same but Figure 9, states 
this window needs to be field verified. 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

139 all Attachment 4, 
Window Survey 

all Are the windows that are in the original exterior 
that is being now covered by the North Lean-to 
window type D? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

140 all Attachment 4, 
Window Survey 

all Can you provide demensions for the various 
Type I or x openings? B30S1-1x, B30S1-2I, 
B30N1-6I, B30N-7I, B30W1-6I, B30W1-11I. 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

141 18 Attachment 4, 
Window Survey 

  Window B30S1-1x states for storefront to 
remain.  Is this storefront ATFP compliant.  If 
not and it will be replaced do you want it to be 
replaced with storefront as shown or with a 
historical looking door similar to B30N1-6I? 

See Continuation 
Sheet Amendment 
02 

144   Basement or Craw 
space 

D20 Provide  underslab or craw space drawings for 
bldg. 030 per Part 6  Attachment 17 - Drawings 
drawing 1 of 122  Transverse Section shows a 
basement or craw space and Elec. Dwgs. 32723 
show a pit below floor. 

Refer to PW 
drawing number 
32,716 in 
attachment 17 and 
other provided 
drawings as 
applicable. 
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145   A001 - Inquiry 
#94 

  Confirm evaluation of exterior walls and 
windows shall consider a Charge weight I blast 
from the controlled perimeter (floating barrier) 
as defined in Bid Inquiry #94.  Confirm a 
Charge Weight II is not required to be used from 
the water within the controlled perimeter 
(floating barrier).   

Refer to RFP 
requirements and 
amendments. 

146   PDC-TR 12-02 
and PDC-TR 
0608 

  Provide the correct reference to be used to 
determine the appropriate response limit for 
flexural elements supporting glazing.  PDC-TR 
06-08 does not consider glazing and is less 
stringent, and PDC-TR 12-02 is specific for 
glazing and is more stringent. Which should be 
used for design? 

Refer to PDC-TR 
10-02 via UFC 4-
010-01 

 

Continuation sheet for AMENDMENT 02 

REQUESTS for INFORMATION without SPECIFIC LOCATIONS 

BIL 87 - The condensate lines for the proposed HVAC system(s).  Should they discharge into the Storm Drain or Sanitary Sewer 
system? 
RESPONSE: The base permit allows uncontaminated condensate from air conditioners be discharged to storm drain.  Reference: 
VAR051592 B.  Special Conditions 1. Allowable non-storm water discharges. d. Uncontaminated condensate from air conditioners. 
 
BIL 88 - The existing bicycle racks are in poor condition and look unsightly.  Should we anticipate the installation of new bicycle 
racks? 
RESPONSE: Yes 
 
BIL  96 - Is material testing required to determine material characteristics for use in structural assessment/analysis or can reasonable 
assumptions be used if justified? 
RESPONSE:  Refer to requirements in RFP. 
 
BIL 89 - Drainage downspouts.  Shall the downspouts continue to empty on to grade or will an underground collection system be 
required? 
RESPONSE:  An underground collection system is not required. See UFC 3-201-01 
 
BIL 90 - Will new downspout splash blocks be required? 
RESPONSE: See UFC 3-201-01 3-2 Roof Drainage for downspout requirements. 
 
BIL 91 - Will the Contractor be required to tag, store and re-install the existing furniture items for re-use? 
RESPONSE: Yes 
 
BIL 97 - Can more information be provided on the location, size, weight, and quantity of secure safes required in the facility? 
RESPONSE:  Quantity and size available in Part 6, Attachment 02 – NNSY Bldg 0030-Staffing Equipment 2-5-15-tenant.pdf.  Note 
“File-GSA-Secure”.  Weight unknown. 
 
BIL 95 - Are any spaces within the structure considered “confined spaces” per OSHA that will be required to perform the structural 
condition assessment?  Additional costs and qualifications for labor will be incurred if confined spaces are present. 
RESPONSE: None that we are aware of. 
 
BIL 128 - Can you provide a site layout sheet for the location of the modular swing space trailer complex on the Yard (tennis courts)?  
Also, please indicate the adjacent utilities and their capabilities for feeding the complex. 
RESPONSE: See Part 6 Attachments 24-Drawings-AutoCad/Bldg-SitePlan.dwg.  This dwg file has the “North End” of the Shipyard 
and identifies Temporary Modular Unit Office Site and Alternate Site.  File has Water and Sewer “layers” with pipe sizes and manhole 
locations. 
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PART 2 – GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
Part 2, Section 01 33 29.05 20 
BIL 43 - No LEED certification required, however, the “Guiding Principles” are to be followed to the greatest extent feasible. 

 
PART 3 – PROJECT PROGRAM 
Chapter 1, Project Description 
BIL 99 - For the Modular Offices, the Furnishings are to be included in the lease of the Temporary Modular Offices, for the final 
Facility, they are part of the FF&E. 

Chapter 1, Project Description 
BIL 102 - The Contractor will provide the “hook up” of utilities and the Government will be providing the monthly services. 

Chapter 1, page 1 
BIL 83 - Use finished floor elevation indicated in Chapter 6, Part 3, Paragraph G103001 GRADING  

Chapter 1, page 3, 14 c. 
BIL 74 - Disregard reference to PDS systems.  Not a part of this project. 

Chapter 1, page 3, 14 d. 
BIL 73 - Disregard reference to use of existing electrical panels. 

Chapter 1, page 3 
BIL 93 - The out-of-plumb condition of the end walls, as shown in the survey of the end walls for plumb, has existed and has been 
consistent for at least the past 20 years. 

Chapter 1, page 3 
BIL 38 - The Unit Price captures anticipated repointing. 

Chapter 1, page 4, paragraph 21 
BIL 35 - Disregard number of windows called out.  See revised Price Proposal Form. 

Chapter 1, page 4 & Chapter 6, ESR-A10 
BIL 100 - Replace fourth paragraph (begins with "As a minimum...") of Part 3 Chapter 6 page 1 A10 GENERAL with the following: 
As a minimum, the successful bidder's Geotechnical Engineer shall perform one boring to a depth of 80 feet for each pile supported 
foundation, and seven borings to a depth of 20 feet beneath slab on grade (six for general area of original building and one at cored hole 
in brick addition), and supplementary laboratory classification of soils encountered, on the building site to support the foundation 
design and/or subsequent pile driving analysis. Boring depths indicated above are from Norfolk Naval Shipyard Datum 
elevation 100.00’ 

Chapter 1, paragraph 21 and Chapter 4 paragraph 4.3 
BIL 33 - It is estimated that up to 40 windows may require replacement due to deterioration.  Final determination by Historic Architect 
via window by window Report sent to and concurred by State Department of Cultural Resources via NavFac SHPO representative.  
Windows deemed beyond repair are to be replaced with ATFP windows of matching style, proportion, and character.  Windows 
determined to be repairable will be repaired as required by RFP and reinstalled.  A full panel ATFP window shall be installed behind it 
as "back up". 

Chapter 1, page 5 
BIL 118 - Kitchenette/Break is not intended for cooking.  No stoves, ranges, ovens etc. 

Chapter 1, page 5 
BIL 54 - Space Tab Master defines the number of employees to be included in the Modular Offices.  The International Building Code 
requires a minimum of 100 square foot per person for Business Occupancy gross.  Calculate and design to accommodate employees, 
Conference Rooms, and support spaces accordingly. 

Chapter 1, page 5 
BIL 128 - For Temporary Modular Office Site related information Reference Part 6 Attachments 24-Drawings-AutoCad for Trailer 
Complex Locations.  Overall Tab for Site, Alternate Site, Water and Sewer. 

Chapter 1, page 10 
BIL 85 - Yes, the sanitary system will require an analysis up to the 18" pipe along First Street. 

Chapter 1, page 10 
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BIL 86 - The floating barriers required in the RFP will become part of the base’s controlled perimeter.  The minimum distance to the 
controlled perimeter from any part of building 30 will be 425 feet.  Use applicable explosive weight from UFC 4-010-01.  Remove 
paragraph 2 under ANTI-TERRORISM FORCE PROTECTION (ATFP) section, Part 3 -CHAPTER 1 - PAGE 10 which reads 
"Applicable explosive weight shall be “I” except that water borne explosive weight shall be 2.273 times explosive weight “I”." Remove 
sixth item of 2.3.6 Antiterrorism Criteria, PART 3-CHAPTER 2, which reads "The design Basis Threat to Parking and Roadways 
within a Controlled Perimeter is Applicable Explosive Weight I. The Design basis Threat at the waterside controlled perimeter is 2.273 
times greater than Applicable Explosive Weight I".  Remove eighth item of 2.3.6 Antiterrorism Criteria, PART 3-CHAPTER 2, which 
reads "Facilities existing exterior wall construction is classified as unreinforced masonry. The Conventional Construction Standoff 
Distance (CCSD) for applicable explosive weight I is 80 meters or 262 feet. A CCSD is not available for the waterside applicable 
explosive weight." 

Port Security Barrier Floating Barrier shall be designed to stop Fast Inshore Attack Crafts, Boat Borne Improvised Explosive Devices, 
and attacks on the military vessels.  Continuous floating pontoon fence line anchored at the “mouth” of the three Wet Slips. The PSB 
shall be capable of stopping a 20,000 pound boat traveling at 60 knots with a safety factor of FS=1.5. 

Port Security Barrier will be opened and closed numerous times a day. 

Chapter 1, page 11 
BIL 110 - The “Secure Island” perimeter will be a design decision based upon multiple influences both present and future use. 

Chapter 1, 21 & Chapter 4, 4.3 
BIL 33 - Disregard references to 1-4 existing windows being removed, restored, and installed as interior Historic Displays. 

Chapter 2, 2.5.5 & 2.8 
BIL 99 - FF&E within the Modular Offices is a part of the contract.  Also reference Part 6 Attachment 3 Existing Furniture for a list of 
what will be “Retained” by the tenant and what will be “Discarded” by the tenant for Contractor removal from Bldg. 0030. 

Chapter 4, paragraph 4 
BIL 7 - Differences between “Personnel” (BFR Part 3, Chapter 4), “Space Tab Master” (Part 3, Chapter 4), and “NNSY Bldg 0030 
Staffing Equipment 2-5-15.pdf” spreadsheet (Part 3, Chapter 4 and Part 6 Attachment 02).  All have important information but 
prioritize as follows, Number 1 “NNSY Bldg 0030 Staffing Equipment 2-5-15.pdf” (Part 3, Chapter 4), Number 2 BFR” (Part 3, 
Chapter 4), number 3 “Space Tab Master” (Part 3, Chapter 4). 

Chapter 4, paragraph 4 
BIL 7 - Present staff count in Bldg. 0030 is 243 and this same count will be used for the Temporary Modular Office design.  
Anticipated employee growth within Bldg. 0030 after the renovation is 298 (for Bldg. 0030 design) (Be advised "staff count" shall 
NOT be considered equal to Occupant Load).  A Fire Protection Engineer shall compute a Life safety Code Analysis including 
computation of the Occupant Load (based on use of each space and associated square footage as detailed in the Life Safety Code). 

Chapter 4, paragraph 5 Room Requirements, Break Room/Vending 
BIL 8 - For linear feet of cabinetry/millwork, provide up to 16 LF of Base Cabinetry and Counter top with up to 20 LF of Wall 
Cabinetry. 

Chapter 4, paragraph 5 Room Requirements, Mechanical Room at Commons 
BIL 9 - Provide “No wax and no polish homogenous tile” as indicated in the RFP.  Omit acoustical ceiling tile (ACT) in the Mechanical 
spaces. 

Chapter 4, paragraph 5 Room Requirements, Restrooms 
BIL 57 - Provide floor to ceiling porcelain tile with two accents.  Delete 48” wainscot on wet walls. 

Chapter 4, Space Tab Master 
BIL 48 - Use Square Feet for future submissions, the Square Meter column is a part of the template, not a requirement for future area 
calculations. 

Chapter 4, Space Tab Master 
BFI 53 - Square Footage requirements are considered guides, not absolutes. 

 
Chapter 4, Space Tab Master 
BFI 54 - Square Footage requirements are considered guides, not absolutes.  Design Conference Rooms for designated seating. 

Chapter 4, Space Tab Master 
BIL 111 - Attic access, intent is to have stairs continue to attic space.  
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Chapter 5, Room Requirements, Flex-Space 
BIL 116 - Ceilings can be a “hard ceiling” but the final finish shall be devoid of attached utilitarian elements and take into account 
future modifications with the same result. 

Chapter 5, Room Requirements, Facility Entry 
BIL 56 - Recessed Entry Mats are to be included only at Entrance Door/Foyer. 

Chapter 5, Room Requirements, Restrooms 
BIL 57 - Provide floor to ceiling porcelain tile with 2 accents throughout. 

Chapter 6, ESR A10 
BIL 40 - The words "soil" and "soils" in Price Proposal form bid item 0001D shall be changed to "subgrade". 

Chapter 6, ESR B20 
BIL 92 - Exterior Doors to be designed to UFC 4-010-01. 

Chapter 6, ESR B20 
BIL 39 - Unit price in Price Proposal From captures anticipated repointing. 

Chapter 6, ESR C10, C101001 
BIL 115 - For further clarification of STC ratings, refer to the appropriate UFC or SecNav M-5510.36. 

Chapter 6, ESR C10, C101001 
BIL 55 - Traditional Walls, vs. Demountable Wall, vs. Glass Partitions, to be considered a design decision by design team. 

Chapter 6, ESR C10, C103005 
BIL 13 - Clarify two tier lockers in Restrooms. 

Chapter 6, ESR C10, C103006 
BIL 92 - Exterior Doors to be designed to UFC 4-010-01Chapter 6, ESR D20 

Chapter 6, ESR C30, C103020 
BIL 108 - A) Please reference PART 4 - SECTION C302005 21.5 CARPET BACKING REQUIREMENTS. 
E) Aluminum strips or zinc strips will be acceptable. 

Chapter 6, ESR C10, C103090 
BIL 107 - Disregard requirement, Power and data for projectors are not required, therefore screens are not. 

Chapter 6, ESR D20, D202001 
BIL 143 - For interior domestic water piping above 3” use Cast Iron (CI) as specified. 

Chapter 6, ESR D20 
BIL 16, 66, 76, 117 - The current Test Flow Data is out of date.  The Contractor’s Fire Protection Engineering Service will be required 
to take new flow data coordinated with the utilities engineer, scheduled when the Base booster pumps are off. 

Chapter 6, ESR D20, D202003, page 2 
BIL 19 - Do not use other steam heat exchangers except for the hot water converters in the mechanical room. Hot water from the 
mechanical room may be used for domestic water heating. 

Chapter 6, ESR D20 
BIL 78 - Delete requirement for Safety Shower/Eyewash. 

Chapter 6, ESR D30 page 2 
BIL 20 - For this Project the interpretation of a general office space zone may include; up to "4 individual spaces of similar exposure 
and cooling loading with a maximum square footage per zone of 2,500 SF." 

 
 
Chapter 6, ESR D30 
BIL 77 - Use ASHRAE 90.1-2010, the more stringent of the UFC's.  As per UFC 1-200-02 1 March 2013  Change 3, 7 November 2014 
"Unification  issues: The Navy and Air Force, in accordance with 10 CFR Part 433, require meeting the requirements of ASHRAE 
90.1-2007 /1/ for all projects with design starts prior to July 9, 2014, and the use of ASHRAE 90.1-2010 thereafter /1/." 

Chapter 6, ESR D30, D303001, page 3 
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BIL 21 - 20 degree F requirement should be updated to 10 degree F and yes, Freeze Protection is required.  The protection shall be a 
combination of insulation, heat tracing, low ambient circulation pump operation and any additional measures assessed to be prudent by 
the designer.  If glycol is used it shall be propylene glycol not ethylene glycol.  Piping with chemical treatment shall be provided with 
spill prevention and control measures such as curb /containment that prevent leaks from entering the storm drain. 

Chapter 6, ESR D30 page 2 
BIL 22 - Referencing the evaluation of at least three HVAC systems to be provided during the design phase, yes, the assessment shall 
include a recommendation by the contractor.  The selection shall be reviewed and approved by NAVFAC Engineering in context of 
other factors related to the project, i.e., maintenance, fall protection, security, and future flexibility. 

Chapter 6, ESR D30, D303002, page 23 and D305003 page 5 
BIL 23 - The floor mounted specification is driven from numerous maintenance access issues with existing suspended systems. Other 
configurations may be proposed in concept design and with the system evaluations.  These other options shall be reviewed for 
maintenance concerns to ensure unimpeded maintenance access and satisfactory fall protection provisions. 

Chapter 6, ESR D30, D304008, page 4 
BIL 24 - Filter Requirement, use UFC 3-410-01, "filter the combined supply air, including return and outside air, with a combination of 
pre-filter(s) with a MERV of 8 and final filter(s) with a MERV of 13 when tested in accordance with ASHRAE Standard 52.2." 

Chapter 6, ESR D30, D309091 
BIL 26 - Chillers may have reciprocating, rotary screw or scroll compressors. Chillers shall have staging for part load capacity down to 
25% load. 

Chapter 6, ESR D30, D309091, page 11 
BIL 27 - Duct Air Leakage Testing (DALT) required on all ductwork except negative pressure systems. 

Chapter 6, ESR D40 
BIL 68 - Delete references to Base Wide Mass Notification system.  Not required. There will be a local stand-alone Mass Notification 
System required.  The base utilizes a Gamewell 100 mA telegraphic system.  The existing transmitter shall not be reused.  Provide a 
Digitize DET-16 telegraphic transmitter and coordinate zone programming with base. 

Chapter 6, ESR D40 
BIL 16, 66, 76, 117 - For water flow test data, the current data is out of date. The contractor’s fire protection engineering service will be 
required to take new flow data coordinated with the utilities engineer, scheduled with Base booster pumps off. 

Chapter 6, ESR D50, D509090 
BIL 72 - Delete references to 400Hz infrastructure.  Not a requirement of this project. 

Chapter 6, ESR D50, D509090, page 10 
BIL 29 - Delete references to Photovoltaic systems.  Not a requirement of this project. 

Chapter 6, ESR D50, D509090, page 12 
BIL 42 - Delete references to Emergency Generators.  Not a requirement of this project. 

Chapter 6, ESR E20 
BIL 109 - Please see Amd 1/VA Sales Tax document.  Per Virginia state sales tax ruling 06-12-2014 FFE and AV packages are exempt 
from state sales tax in the state of Virginia.  Typically there would be (2) BVD packages; one for the FF&E and one for the A/V.  The 
Government may decide to exercise a third BVD package. 

Chapter 6, ESR G10, G1040 
BIL 41 - G1040 HAZARDOUS WASTE REMEDIATION: Change UFC 1-800-10N to UFC 3-800-10N.  Add the following sentence: 
For bidding purposes assume that hazardous waste remediation will not be required for ground water or soil. 

Chapter 6, ESR G30, G3020 
BIL 84, 85 - Yes the sanitary system will require an analysis up to the 18" pipe along First Street. The utility provider will verify pump 
capacity with the waste water flows provided. 

Chapter 6, ESR G40 
BIL 124 - Clarify that 100% of the Enclosure and base shall be stainless steel. 

Chapter 6, ESR G40 
BIL 123 - Delete “Provide a pad-mounted transformer to feed the facility”. 
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PART 4 – PERFORMANCE TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 
B20, B201003, 1.1 
BIL 113, 114 - Do not apply any materials to or into "Historic" brick (inside or outside). 

D50, D5009007 
BIL 29 - No photovoltaic system required.  Disregard. 

G40, G401001 
BIL 122 - Sizing of Transformer and switchgear shown is a minimum recommendation for future expansion and the possibility that the 
mechanical equipment load may increase substantially during the phases of construction. If design data/calculations provided contradict 
the sizing of transformer and switchgear, modification can be made.  The overall intent was to insure we are provided with the capacity 
for future loads and not only those apparent in this design.  These items can be discussed prior to submittal acceptance. 

G40, G401001 
BIL 123 - Clarification: Provide Unit Substation. 

 
PART 5 – PRESCRIPTIVE SPECIFICATIONS 
General - ESR’s transferred to Part 3 in Amendment 1 

 
PART 6 – ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment 3 Existing Furniture 
BIL 15, 45 - This is a list of what furnishing will be “Retained”, i.e. kept, incorporated into the Modular Office design and transferred 
to the Modular Offices by the Contractor and what will be “Discarded”, i.e. left and appropriately removed by the Contractor. 

 
Attachment 4 Window Survey 
BIL 134 - The Window Survey was performed in 2008 and is provided as a guide to give scale to the quantity and variety of windows 
therefore disregard notes determining “to remain” or “to replace”.  The windows themselves vary in dimensions, most were built in 
place and not mass manufactured.  The “health” of each window is specifically unknown and will be assessed individually by “Historic 
Architect” and documented via a prepared Report to be submitted for review by NavFac and the Virginia Department of Cultural 
Resources. 

 
End of Amendment 


